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Editorial:                                             TORTURE A NON-ISSUE 
Since conflict started in Jammu and Kashmir the issues highlighted by the political and human rights organizations have focused on the presence of army (half-a-million), the number of killings (80,000) and disappearances (8-10,000). However, no campaign has been initiated on the issue of torture. Torture is a major issue confronted by the large section of society particularly the non-combatant Kashmiris. A strong campaign is needed to highlight the phenomenon of torture in the state. Since torture is accepted by the people as they least complain about it and feel content being survived. Even if the torture victims continue to live with the pain and sufferings they have undergone after the security forces agencies and police have arrested them during their operations to combat militancy. People have been tortured at will and the “lucky ones” who don’t succumb to torture, least agitate about their plight. Occasionally, some worst torture cases get media attention. The number of the torture victims would be manifold than the people killed here. The torture related deaths after many years, go unrecorded, unreported and are least noticed. There are innumerable victims who after the physical torture are surviving with the pain, agony and have been incapacitated. An in-depth survey is needed in this behalf. 

The two classical cases of Manzoor Ahmad Naikoo of Pattan and Nazir Ahmad Sheikh of Kupwara are an example for us. In the year 1991, the former a shopkeeper by profession was arrested by the security forces during a crackdown and was subjected to severe torture. The worst a rod has been inserted in his rectum. Though he is still living, looking a normal human being but in fact is a handicap and dependent on his family. The later a potter with army whose lower limbs and the fingers of his left hand got amputated after troops tortured him mercilessly. The rollers were trampled upon his legs and then a bucket of hot water was thrown on them. He was coerced to walk by his elbow on the snow in 0 degree temperature. The torture was so severe that after his release the doctors opted for amputation to save his life.  The latter deserted by his wife for same reason, is fighting a case in the high court for ex gratia relief from the government.

There are innumerable unrecorded cases where young victims after electrical torture in their genitals have become impotent and silently they are living with shame throughout. Besides, physical torture the mental torture have assumed alarming proportions. Never in the history of Kashmir have such a large number of people collective faced the psychiatric disorders and psychiatric morbidity particularly the women who have watched their husband and sons get killed by the state or non-state actors. There are a large number of children who because of trauma have discontinued their education. The sociologists and psychiatrists have conducted very few studies in this regard and in their reports they have highlighted the phenomenon of Post Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) of the people. There has been no exposure of the torture in the interrogation centres like Abu Garib prison centre of Iraq unlike other victims of torture unrelated with militancy they are seldom supported by the state particularly the victims of the mental torture, which is not recognized by the state. The state only acknowledges people who have suffered from grave injuries in militancy incidents and gave them, the paltry amount.

The people because of their ignorance about their rights accept torture and also because of the indifference of the human rights groups who have least prioritized it. According to our knowledge not a single case of torture has been sent to the United Nation Working Group. Torture is a concern for the international community and the Convention against Torture and Other Cruel, Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment adopted by General Assembly on 9 December 1975. Torture is an offence under the Criminal Law and the states are barred to practice torture. Even the Rome Statute of International Criminal Court 1998 has defined torture as a crime against humanity. Organized torture by the state functionaries in the state of Jammu and Kashmir is a matter of grave concern for the International Community particularly to the civil society groups. The treatment of the governments to their citizens is not an internal affair. Even in international and non–international conflicts, the torture have been strictly prohibited according to the Geneva Convention. An effective campaign is to be needed for highlighting the phenomenon of torture and to identify the perpetrators to be taken to justice. Torture is being used a collective punishment and according to Jean Pal Sartre “The purpose of torture is not only the extortion of confessions, of betrayal: the victim must disgrace himself, by his screams and his submission, like a human animal, in the eyes of every body and in his own eyes. He who yields under torture is not only to be made to talk but is also to be marked as sub-human.”             

1 KILLED, 2 INJURED IN UNWARRANTED BSF FIRING 

Baramulla, Feb 6: Border Security Force (BSF) personnel opened unprovoked fire upon a civilian vehicle here, killing one of the inmates on the spot and injuring two others critically. 
Witness said the trio traveling in a blue colored Maruti van bearing registration number JKF 990 near Magam in Gulmarg—the world famous health resort—50 km from Srinagar, felt prey to unwarranted bullets by BSF.

Zahoor Ahmad Bhat, 23 died instantly while Noor-ud-Din, 30, and Ajaz Ahmad Khan, 25, sustained critical injuries. 

A police spokesman however described the trio as militants. The spokesman said: “The three militants coming from Gulmarg had an encounter with BSF personnel at Magam. One died on the spot and two managed their escaped from the scene.” 

The BSF spokesman, V S Manhas said: “The personnel of 50 BN signaled at Bhat’s car but they failed to stop. Instead, there was pistol fire from the vehicle, which prompted retaliation by the jawans. Taking advantage of the misty environment, three men managed their escape. Later, when the jawans went to check the vehicle, they found two injured persons, one of whom succumbed later”. 

Replying to a media person’s inquiry regarding the recovery of arms or any substantial evidence, Manhas said, “It‘s not clear. We haven’t recovered anything yet”.  

However, according to The Inspector General of Police (IGP), Javaid Maqdoomi, investigations are on and police is trying to verify the BSF claims.  The IGP claimed that Bhat and his friends were driving fast.

Nevertheless, Magam police are clear that there were no fire from the vehicle upon the BSF personnel. 

Two weeks after the incident, “The Informative Missive” team, spoke to one of the survivors Noor-ud-Din 30, an auto rickshaw driver whose condition by that time had stabilized. Noor-ud-Din was lying on floor surrounded by his relatives only to confirm he is alive. Noor-ud-Din, whose nose was damaged in the incident, had his face covered with bandage. When asked to divulge the incident by The Informative Missive Noor-ud-din mumbled, “On 6th Feb, I along with two other friends planned for a refreshing break at Gulmarg. However midway at Tangmarg, nearly 35 Kms from Srinagar and 15 Kms before Gulmarg, we were forced to return for poor road condition. Due to inclement weather and fog the windowpanes of the vehicle were closed. All of a sudden there was gunfire upon the vehicle at Magam by the personnel of 50 BN killing Zahoor on the spot while injuring Ajaz and me critically. I was in the rear seat; I saw widow panes breaking and something hot pierce my nose. Turning side-wise, I saw blood oozing out of Zahoor’s head as the bullet hit his spinal cord. How the car came to a halt I don’t know. In extreme fear we ran for safety”.    


“In chaos and confusion after running about ½ km, I hopped in a speedy bus but the commuters and driver skeptic about my identity forced me out. Moving ahead, I tried to board a Sumo, however seeing blood oozing the driver refused to carry me. Finally, I jumped into a Tata Sumo after I had covered my face with muffler to hide the injury inflicted on my face”, Noor said while recalling the awful scene of his life. He further added, “As I stepped inside my house, before I could reveal anything I felt unconscious. Subsequently, I was moved to hospital and my life was saved.

 Pleading his innocence, Noor-ud-Din further told The Informative Missive “I have no affiliation with any militant organization nor any of my friends had as has been labeled by the forces. 

Meanwhile, unconfirmed sources from Tangmarg alleged that a speedy vehicle hit and run after injuring an old aged villager while returning from Gulmarg. The incident evoked strong protests and the protesters chased the vehicle to nab the culprit. Chasing up to some distance the villagers were enquired upon by the Army manning the area for the chaos. In rage the villagers told the army personnel that the vehicle borne men had killed an elderly person and fled. Bewildered the army without knowing exact situation assumed it a case of militant activity. In haste, in order to nab the escapers, army forwarded a wireless message to the BSF personnel posted at Magam. The BSF personnel laid a siege and as soon as the blue vehicle drew closer they fired upon killing one of the inmates and injuring others. 


Cursing her fate, Noor’s mother Mahtaba complained, “I was shocked and regained consciousness after days. To file First Information Report (FIR), I went to Magam police station two 

three times but was told to get a written permission from the Divisional Commissioner (Div Com). How easy it is for the troops to implicate anybody anywhere.” 


“Where is the pistol by which they fired upon the BSF? How they escaped from the scene if they possessed only a pistol”, questions Noor-ud-Din’s mother. The other two families have same tale to tell. Zahoor’s family was mourning his death. “He 

(Zahoor) was to get married in a month. I had seen him leave smiling. He was very happy these days. I couldn’t recognize him when his body was brought”, Shabir Ahmad Zahoor’s younger brother said. Ajaz’s family also shared the same grief.

              Gloomed over the loss in one way or another, all the families have one desire left, to search the reality, which is the only way to get justice.

A CASE OF RESURFACED DISAPPEARANCE

Feb 2: A disappeared youth resurfaced on Jan 28, 2005, five months after being abducted by some unidentified gunmen from his residence at Gulgam, Elchizab, in North Kashmir’s Kupwara district.

Unidentified gunmen kidnapped Mushtaq Ahmad (22), son of Abdul Gani War, a mason, in September 2004. Three days prior to his abduction a local contractor namely, Mohammad Afzal along with his associates conducted a raid at Mushtaq’s home but finding him away from home, they left.  Mushtaq on that day had gone to Karnah, Tangdar for his work. However, the motive behind the raid was suspected to be a case of disapproving love affair between Afzal’s daughter Rosy and Mushtaq. 
On December 10, Mushtaq after returning from Tangdar straightaway went to the market to fetch vegetables. Reaching market two Kashmiri speaking persons in civvies forcibly boarded Mushtaq in a nearby halted Sumo vehicle and sped away. Thereafter nothing was known of Mushtaq.

His family left no stone unturned to locate him but to no avail. 
It was however, nearly five months that Mushtaq resurface. He had been detained at Kot Bhalwal Jail, Jammu, and was set free on Jan 28, 2005.

Mushtaq told The Informative Missive: “The abductors accused me of having love affair with Mohammad Afzal’s daughter and revealed that they had been paid by him to kill me”.

 On the same evening at 5:30 pm, Mushtaq said he was taken to Jammu.  Next day he was presented before a bearded person in civvies who bashed Mushtaq and threatened him for having relation with Afzal’s daughter. 

“I believed that he was a police official. It was on his instruction that I was taken to Kot Bhalwal jail where I was incarcerated form 4 months and 26 days,” Mushtaq added. 

Mushtaq was illegally detained. During his detention he was neither booked under any offence nor under the Public Safety Act (PSA). He was lodged in a solitary cell and had no detention number neither he was taken before any executive or judicial magistrate for remand. Nor he was interrogated. 

Mustaq further divulged, “During my detention period I met 15 persons of different parts of the valley. Among them three were from Pulwama district and two from Uri, Baramulla. It came to fore that the families of most of the detainees were unaware of their whereabouts. Detained for over a year or so, these detainees were unable to contact their families. 

“If needed, I could easily recognize them (the detainees) through photos,” Mushtaq said.
Mushtaq’s father Abdul Gani War, a peasant told The Informative Missive, “Immediately, after his disappearance we rushed to police station Kupwara for filing FIR against Afzal as I was convinced he was the one behind Mushtaq’s disappearance, but police refused to file FIR. Thereafter, we contacted SSP, Kupwara, Deputy Commissioner and Inspector General of Police besides meeting ruling People’s Democratic Party (PDP) president, Mehbooba Mufti. 
“However, IG Police took strong note of the matter and called Afzal and threatened him to disclose the whereabouts or face consequences. On IG’s instructions, police filed FIR. Meanwhile, I also approached the Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons (APDP) for help”.
          On January 28, Mushtaq was released. On reaching the bus terminal one of Afzal’s relative namely, Fayaz Ahmad Mir son of Ghulam Mohi-ud-Din who was most probably send by Afzal helped Mushtaq to return to his home. 

 “I couldn’t believe my eyes that Mushtaq is alive. With village headman I took him to police station Kupwara and pleaded the SHO there that he be allowed to go home that night and assured to report him next day in the police station. The reason for taking him to police station was that since we had filed a report of disappearance accusing Mohammad Afzal, therefore it was necessary to report Mushtaq’s resurfacing”. 

As Mushtaq approached the police station, the police detained him on pretext of inquiry. He was kept there for seven days. During this period, Mohammad Afzal bribed the police, according to Mushtaq’s family, for his detention. 

Mushtaq’s family alleges that the abduction was made on the instructions of Mohammad Afzal who has strong connection with Intelligence Bureau (IB) and other agencies. 

Afzal’s late sister, Taja Begum who had contested the assembly elections and had good contacts in political circles of which Afzal was taking undue advantages. 

Mushtaq’s case is an interesting one, which unveils one aspect of the cases of enforced disappearances in Kashmir. Mushtaq’s reappearance has nevertheless rekindled hope among the families of the enforced disappearance victims- a phenomena, which has assumed alarming proportion in valley since the inception of armed conflict. 
Meanwhile, Mushtaq since his release feels prone to abduction or elimination. The family is in a fix

. 

CIVILIAN KILLED, DUBBED AS MILITANT

February 15: In yet another incident of fake identity killing, the Special Task Force (STF) killed a youth Muhammad Shabir Khan, 28, son of Umar Din Khan in Udhampur district of Jammu on February 10. 

However, the police maintain that he died of drowning after jumping into a river. 
Earlier, the STF and CRPF claimed to have killed a militant namely 'Kamran Bhat. 
However, their claim fell to ground, when a local resident identified the body as of Muhammad Shabir Khan, a resident of Kathau district. Contradicting their earlier statement, forces denied to have killed any militant. They further divulged that Shabir drowned after jumping into river. 
             According to local reports, Shabir has three brothers, two of whom work in the police. 

Shabir had been detained earlier under the Public Safety Act (PSA). He had been arrested for allegedly possessing a map, which was thought of helping militants to move in the area. 
The deceased was later released from Kot Bhalwal Jail after two years. 

According to locals, police had previously lodged Shabir for allegedly committing murder in Malhar area, but a court acquitted him, as murder was not proved. 
                 According to Parvez Ahmad (name changed) a witness to the whole episode, Shabir Khan traveled along him from Lohai in a matador. He carried Rs 65,000, which were withdrawn by him as a Bank loan from Jammu and Kashmir Bank for buying mules.
           At Ludera Bridge, the STF party stopped the matador for frisking. However, having no identity card Shabir was kept aside and the police who after having the money asked him to run. 
  According to witness, after Shabir covered some distance, the forces started shouting ‘militant militant’ and fired in air. The people on hearing noise about militant also raised the same alarm. In order to save himself, Shabir jumped into a river.No sooner he had jumped into water, police started pelting stones on him due which he suffered a head injury and died. Police than dragged the body and photographed it as a dead 

 militant, the witness added
 Another witness said, Shabir was declared 'Kamran Bhat a known and most sought after militant after police found a permanent writing of KB on his wrist. It was latter found that KB stood for his beloved’s name.                 

               The residents of Lohai said that they approached Police Station Billawar to lodge compliant but police lodged an open complaint under 174 Criminal Procedure Code (CrPC). On being contacted, the Billawar police said that SHO Billwar was not present, as he had gone on leave on February 12 after two days of the incident. Head Constable Raj Kumar managed the police station in his absence. According to him, Shabir died by jumping into the river. . "Basantgarh STF was searching a militant Mujtaba and  

they had ambushed at Ludera Bridge. Bashir who has some case registered with Malhar police station upon seeing police jumped into river and died of its own, he said. 
Tehsildar Billwar, Ali Mohammad Lone said that during checking by police, Shabir was kept aside for not having identity card with him. "He got frightened and jumped into river", he said, adding that police fired in air because they got suspicious of him. Tehsildar also disclosed that Basantgarh police belongs to Udhampur district and they had not informed the local police or administration to launch an operation in the area. He said that area falls under Billwar tehsil of Kathua district.

 MYSTERIOUS DISAPPEARANCE SHOCKS FAMILY

Srinagar Feb 12: The disappearance of Noor Mohammad Wangnoo, 65, on 12th February 2005 came as a shock not just to his family, but also to his entire native area of Noorabad Qamarwari, on the outskirts of this capital city.

A load carrier driver by profession, Noor Muhammad, according to his family, never felt inclined towards any political or militant outfit.  Neither he was arrested before nor had any adverse record in any intelligence agency. 

Noor Muhammad’s disappearance in mysterious circumstances triggered massive protests as people took to streets shouting anti-government slogans. The whole incident dragged wide local media attention. Later, the concerned police officials who visited the spot pacified the protesters assuring that the disappearance would be probed.

A missing report has been filed in Safa Kadal, Saki Daffar police station. However, the family refuted the media reports that Noor Muhammad was picked up by the troops. 

Being a locality head, Noor Mohammad gained immense regard in the area. Furious over the incident, people in the area threaten to lodge massive protest in front of the Chief Minister’s official residence if police failed to ascertain his whereabouts. 

To know the actual facts “The Informative Missive” team visited Noor Mohammad’s house at Qamarwari and talked at length with his relatives. Entering the dilapidated house, massive gathering of people thronged all over, despite a week being passed since Noor Muhammad’s disappearance. Everyone seemed to console the family, at the same time encouraging themselves to toil hard to trace out Noor’s whereabouts. 

Giving details about the circumstances in which Noor Muhammad disappeared to the “The Informative Missive” team Abdul Gani Wangnoo (55) -Noor Mohammad’s cousin said, “Around 6.30 pm, Noor Mohammad went to Nawakadal to ferry cows from Tikipora. Reaching there, two known persons boarded his load carrier Tata 407. After traveling for ½ km distance, owing to rough and bumpy road his vehicle came to halt for some technical reason. As it was getting dark, a neighborly woman namely, Raja who knew Noor Mohammad, offered him to come inside. However perturbed over making back home on time, Noor Muhammad denied the offer and attempted to check his vehicle”. 

Adding further he said, “Evidences at the site of his disappearance indicate that he was dragged to some distance before being taken away. The condition in which his carrier was found and the marks on the ground all authenticate this.”  

As Noor Muhammad failed to return home till late night, his family thought that he might have been staying with some relative or friend. “It didn’t seem problematic nor we had fears of any such untoward thing happening. The whole area is quite peaceful and nothing had happened before as such. He has no rivalry, in fact he is known for his amiable nature. As such there was no reason to worry. But the prevailing circumstances next day compel us to send my brother and my son to Mohammad Gooru’s (best friend of my father’s) house only to make sure that he was there. On reaching there, they were informed that he had not visited them. This dwelled some fear although we were still hopeful of finding him.  It was through some local persons who had found his carrier in odd circumstances that we came to know about his disappearance,” said Noor’s elder daughter while controlling her emotions. 

Tearful she further divulged, “Everyone is astonished to understand as to why he was kidnapped.”  

Interrupting his sister, Muhammad Rafiq, 26, sitting in the corner of the room said, “Before his disappearance Abba (father) show no sign of panic or tension. He was quite happy that day and there was simply no reason for his disappearance.   

The only success on part of the police is that they have arrested few persons including the two who had boarded his carrier on that day for investigation purpose. However, the family alleges the police use dilly-dallying tactics when asked about the status of their investigation.  

“We are still optimistic about the safety of Noor Mohammad, since he had nothing to do with any illegal or erroneous activity whether political or social. “He is innocent”, said his relatives in unison.  

Noor’s wife Azi, 55, is dumb and watches the whole episode as a mute spectator. Tears roll down her cheeks as if she had lost everything and eyes gape the door in a hope of him retuning back

 FORCES KILL 70-YR-OLD 

February 17: Mohammad Maqbool Malla, 70, a shopkeeper was allegedly shot dead by the counterinsurgency Rashtriya Rifles troops at Hadipora, Rafiabad 15 km from Baramulla district of North Kashmir. 


According to sources of The Informative Missive, during a search and cordon operation at Sunni-Saidnar the 32 RR troops allegedly misbehaved with some women, prompting protest from Mohammad Maqbool. Irked by Maqbool’s resistance, troops killed him cold bloodedly. 

Maqbool’s killing evoked massive protests in the area. The protestors placed his body on the main road at Hadipora-Rafiabad, suspending vehicular movement. The demonstration lasted for few hours, as protestors demanded action against the guilty troopers. They also refused to bury Maqbool’s body. 

The protesters budged only after top civil and police officials intervened and promised a probe into the incident. Talking to the media persons, the Army spokesman Colonel V K Batra denied the allegations, saying that he had come to know about the incident only after the operation ended. He claimed that Maqbool might have been either killed in the crossfire, or may have come under the fire of militants who escaped.

Denying local claims, the army officials added that on information that two militants were hiding in the area, 32 RR cordoned off the whole area. “As they started searching, there was a fire from militant side thereby ensuing an encounter in which a militant and a civilian were killed,” Col Batra added. 

Police later identified the slain militant as Bahadur Sheikh alias Kalimullah district Commander of Hizbul Mujahideen.   

Superintendent of Police, Baramulla said that a case has been filed against the troops and the police had started investigation into the incident. However, the SP further added that Maqbool was killed in crossfire between army and a militant hiding in one of the houses in the area.

MILITANTS KILL CIVILIAN

Surankote, (Poonch) Feb 20: Militants allegedly shot dead a civilian on suspicion of being an informer of the Indian troops in this border district of Jammu.

According to the sources of ‘The Informative Missive’, Muhammad Zaman, 36, son of Ata Muhammad of Potha village was on way to his home from his in-laws residence at Mendhar when some unidentified militants abducted and subsequently 

killed him

The incident that took place on 20th February 2005 has shocked the people, as Zaman had been an apolitical person.

Refuting the militant claims that Muhammad Zaman was working with the forces, his wife talking to “The Informative Missive” said, “Zaman had no links with any militant organization nor was he working with any security forces agency”

Mother of two sons  

and a daughter, she added, “ He had no rivalry with any one except that for some months we had a land dispute with our relatives. May be it was for that dispute that they have conspire with militants to kill him. But I am not sure about it”.

Soon after the incident, police lodged FIR at Herne police picket. However, till date, no arrests have been affected.

SAR GEELANI SURVIVES LIFE BID 

February 8: Syed Abdul Rehman Geelani Kashmiri, a teacher at Delhi University (DU), who was acquitted by the Delhi High Court in connection with the alleged militant attack on the Indian Parliament, was assaulted in New Delhi by unidentified gunmen. 

The Delhi police came under sharp attack from the relatives and close associates of Geelani who accused them of carrying murderous assault on Geelani, a resident of north Kashmir’s Baramulla district.

Geelani, who teacher Arabic at the DU, was shot 200 meters from the house of his legal counsel Nadita Hasakar in South Delhi’s Vasant Enclave. He received at least three bullet wounds and was rushed to AIIMS. 

“Finger of suspicion automatically raises on the Special Cell of Delhi police who has been after my brother’s life,” said Syed Bismillah Geelani, younger brother of S A R Geelani. 

On the fateful day, Syed Bismillah said his brother had gone to meet Nandita Haksar an eminent Supreme Court lawyer to discuss some legal issues regarding the Parliament attack trial. At a nominal distance some unknown person who fled away in a vehicle after the incident shot at Geelani. 

“The attack was intended to kill him,” Syed Bismillah, who studies at the DU, said. “It’s Delhi police’s handiwork, we believe.” Geelani had been awarded capital punishment by a lower court along with two more Kashmiris, Muhammad Afzal and Showkat Guroo for the December 2001 Parliament attack. 

The Delhi High Court however acquitted Geelani in October 2003, following widespread protests from academicians, students and civil society actors who rallied behind SAR.

A group named “All India Defense Committee for SAR Geelani” headed by eminent sociologist, Rajni Kothari, which had members including Booker Prizewinner, Arundhati Roy and others, was also formed for the defense of Geelani. 

Three months later Delhi Police challenged Geelani’s acquittal in Supreme Court. 

But since his acquittal, Syed Bismillah charged, SAR was being “hounded and harassed” by the Delhi police cops in “plain clothes.” 

“Even last year my brother filed an application in the court expressing serious apprehensions of an attack on him. But no action was taken,” he said, demanding, “Government should look into the role of the Delhi police.” 

Members of the Defense Committee for SAR, who reportedly gathered outside the Delhi police headquarters on February 9, too questioned the role of Delhi police. 

“Widespread feeling here (in Delhi) is that police is behind the attempt on the life of SAR,” said Sanjay Kak, a prominent filmmaker and a member of the Committee. 

“We don’t know why is he persistently victimized,” Kak said. 

Meanwhile, Delhi police has reportedly launched a massive manhunt in the Capital City and neighboring states to nab the assailants. 

Police say it was “a well-planned” attack. “They (the assailants) knew exactly his movements and where he would be at a given time,” a senior police official was quoted by a news portal as saying. 

“The fact that he had been shot from very close range would mean that Geelani would be in a position to identify the attackers or at least give a fair description,” the police said.

APDP CANCELS FEB SIT-IN

Feb 25: The Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons (APDP) cancelled this month’s sit-in, which is held at Sher-e-Kashmir Park Srinagar on 25th of every month, due to unprecedented snowfall. However, the association members met at its office to discuss further course of campaign after learning about the resurfacing of few disappeared persons from different parts of the Valley.    


The APDP to continue it’s relentless campaign against the phenomenon of enforced or involuntary disappearances in the state has decided to conduct inter-district meetings and would pay visits to the families whose disappeared kin resurfaced. 


The resurfacing of some youth has rekindled hope among the kith and kin of disappeared persons and members alike whose morale got boosted to continue their struggle.   


On this monthly meet the association’s Patron, Parvez Imroz, laid emphasis on to intensify the campaign and fight until the whereabouts of the disappeared persons were traced out and the guilty are brought to book. He also reiterated for holding people’s tribunal to investigate alleged disappearance cases. 

           Imroz said, “It’s ironical that despite 145 disappearances during the new regime, the government has been vehemently denying”. 
“While investigating the reported cases we came across the families whose relatives were picked up by different armed forces agencies and were later released. During the detention of those youth their whereabouts were concealed”.  Imroz said. 

 (The list of the resurfaced youth is at page no.18)
2 CIVILIANS KILLED IN FAKE ENCOUNTER

Feb 26: Thousands of people in Shopian area of South Kashmir’s Pulwama district protested against the killing of two civilians near Sharatpora village on February 26 by 17 JAKLI camp at Sedow. The troops claim both were militants and died in an encounter.

According to forces, troops of 17 JAKLI raffles laid ambush on Feb 26, 2005 at Saratpora village (7kms away from Shopian) and found two persons moving in suspicious circumstances. As troops challenged the duo to stop, they started firing on troops; thereby provoking retaliation. In the ensuing gun battle both the militants were killed. 

The troops identified both of them as “foreign mercenaries.”

They also claimed to have recovered arms and ammunition from the duo. 

Residents of Bandpow Zaiapora (10 Kms from Shopian) and Awagam Kulgam (30 km from Shopian) however contested the forces version and accused the troops of eliminating the two in a fake gun battle.

They said the two were Mukhtar Ahmed Bhat (17) son of Abdul Gani Bhat of Bandpow Zainapora and Rafiq Ahmed Ganie (24) son of Abdul Gani Ganie of Awagam Kulgam. Mukhtar and Rafiq were a baker and a carpenter respectively.

They took to streets on Feb 28 to protest the killings. 

Talking to The Informative Missive, the families of the two killed said “The duo was arrested by the troops of 1 RR camp Behibagh on 16 Feb 2005 at Machoo Kulgam from a Tata Sumo vehicle and after torturing were handed over to 17 JAKLI camp at Sedow Shopian who later killed them in fake encounter in Sharatpora Shopian on 26 Jan 2005”.

Unaware of the duo’s fate, their families started efforts to trace them and approached several Army camps in the area. The families said the army denied having arrested them. Becoming suspicious of the "encounter", they approached police where they identified the photographs with police as those of the two missing youth. 

Later the families appealed the Deputy Commissioner Pulwama to hand over the dead bodies to them for their proper funeral. 

On March 2, DC Pulwama Lateef-uz-Zaman Deva ordered exhumation of the bodies and an enquiry in the killings vide order no 1 / DMP/ 05/ dated February 2, 2005. 

DC Pulwama also framed an investigation committee headed by SDM Shopian (Mr. Ghulam Hassan Wani), Dr Nazir In charge BMO Shopian, Dy. CMO Pulwama  

Tehsildar (Agr) and SDPO Shopian. The committee has been directed to conduct an enquiry. Subsequently, the DNA samples of the dead will be collected to identify them and find out the cause of their death. 
On March 2, morning both the bodies were exhumed and DNA sample was collected. Later the bodies were handed over to the bereaved families who buried them in their respective ancestral graveyards. 

On March 5, Minister of State for Home, Mr. Ab Rehman Veri ordered a judicial enquiry into the incident after a question was raised by the Member of Legislative Assembly (MLA) Wachee, Mr. Muhammad Khalil Naik (CPIM) in the legislative assembly. MLC Mr. Abdul Rehman Tokroo also raised the question in the legislative Council.
VILLAGERS ALLEGE HARASSMENT

ARMY DENIES CHARGES
February 14: Villagers of Rajpora in Pulwama, Pahalgam and Sirhama in Anantnag have alleged that the troops of Rashtriya Rifles (RR) have made their lives hell. The troopers were committing atrocities in these areas by subjecting the local residents to forced labour, harassment, and uncalled-for search operations. 
        “The army camp which has been set up on February 12 at Keller road has become nuisance for the people as troopers are forcing us to work for them. They make us to haul building material and also to do the menial jobs,” residents of Rajpora alleged. 

  “Even students are not being spared by the army personnel”, they added. 
 
Another delegation from Welhama Phalgam also accused personnel of 3 Rashtriya Rifles of atrocities. “Yesterday on February 13, during the search operation we were kept in the open, in sub-zero temperatures, without pherans (a Kashmiri traditional dress wore in winters for protection from cold) for hours. We have been asked by the RR to register the names of our guests in the camp. If anybody defies their orders, they are severely punished,” they added. 

 
The residents of Sirhama said, “Troops of nearby army camp are detaining passenger vehicles for hours together. We are being asked to carry lanterns even at 6:00 p.m.” 

It is worthy to mention here that last year in the same month six civilians were killed in a shootout between army and militants at Chithibanday in Bandipora while they were used as human shields by the army during a gunfight with militants. Army had said the civilians were hired as porters but the families of the deceased had denied army claims saying the men were forced out of their homes. The killings had sparked widespread demonstrations in the Valley. 

PRO Defense Colonel V. K Batra while said, “Labour was hired by the army at Rajpora through Numberdar and they are being paid after one week. There is no question of forced labour.” 
          Regarding Pahalgam, Batra said, “It is partially correct, people are being asked to take off the pherans to check whether they are civilians or militants with weapon.” 
“Only those people are being asked to inform the army about their guests, against whom there is any past record of links with militants. It is because of security reasons. We want to check the presence of foreign militants in the areas,” Batra added. 

Batra said that people all over the Valley have been advised by the army to take lantern when moving in night so that army can easily recognize that they are civilians. It is for the safety of people, Batra added.

ARMY OF ORPHANS ENGAGED IN MENIAL JOBS: STUDY

43% WORK AS CHILD LABOURERS, LIVE IN PATHETIC CONDITION
Srinagar, Feb 27: Forty-three percent of total children in age group of 6-14 years in Jammu and Kashmir are engaged in child labor. The number has risen from 35 percent in 1981 census to 43 percent in the 2001, a study has revealed. 

These children are being exploited in terms of toiling for long hours for minimal wages. Their work conditions are especially severe. “Many of these children endure lives of pure deprivation,” says the study conducted by Dr. Bashir Ahmad Dabla, Head of the University’s Sociology Department.

These children who work for 10-14 hours a day, six days a week are being paid wages according to the wishes of their employers which at times is not sufficient for their dietary needs. There is no set standard for their wages, says Dabla. 
 
“These children have suffered most in the last decade unlike any other section of the society. Their life condition is worsening further due to lesser wages, lesser work, perpetual tension and rising prices in the market,” the study conducted a few years ago revealed. “The proprietors and wholesalers in this field have gained maximum JK’S benefit out of it. Even the girl children working in this sector are being exploited and harassed.” 

Variety of reasons force children to work, the most important being the poverty but 15-year-old conflict, which has orphaned thousands of children in the Kashmir, has forced many children to work to support their families. 

The study found that majority of child laborers in the state, work in various fields like carpet weaving, shawl and other embroidery, paper-machie, wood carving and phum-shahtoos weaving. 
 
Other sector in which children work in the state includes transport industry, automobile garages, hotels, dhabas (small Restaurants) and shops, domestic service, petty occupations and other seasonal fields. Children of both sexes work in these fields in both rural as well as urban areas. 

As is the case in other parts of the sub-continent, the problem of child labour in its acute form exists in Kashmir. “It is partly because of historical reasons and partly because of occupational reasons. 

Historically child labour in the Valley was considered a conventional phenomenon due to extreme poverty situation in rural as well as urban areas. In rural areas, children used to be employed forcefully against petty sums or little amount of foodstuff. They were also engaged largely for cattle rearing and domestic services belonging to poor classes/groups/communities used to work in various handicraft sectors for petty wages. On the other hand, work by children in handicrafts sectors was considered suitable and fruitful by proprietors/wholesalers because they had to pay nominal wages to children who proved lifelong agents for them,” Dr Dabla added. 
 
Although the state government had formulated certain laws related to the child labour and also attempted to enforce these laws, the empirical reality clearly reveals there has been very less impact on the child workers. The government effort lacked the realistic perspective and long term/short term planning. 
 
Supreme Court (SC) on December 10, 1996 issued directions to Union of India and all state governments about the introduction of the welfare fund at the district level for those children who are to be disengaged from the hazardous jobs. 

Though the child welfare committees have been set up at the district level, the J&K government has done nothing so far to implement the directions of ruling of SC, official sources told a local daily. 
According to the ruling, the government has to provide employment to any adult member of the child labor family or to deposit Rs. 5,000 each for each child in the family. 

“Government is encouraging child labour themselves. Handicrafts department has set up training centers where children are being trained in carpet weaving. What does that mean? Government is discouraging labour department to crackdown on carpet weaving units as it would hurt the trade in which big fishes are involved,” said an official of Labor department on the condition of anonymity. 

“Government at the top level has never taken child labour issue seriously”, he added. 
 
Labour Commissioner, Charan Jeet Singh said, “It is not fact that 2.5 lakh children are involved in child labour. The number is lesser than that” 

Asked why the SC ruling has not been implemented so far, Singh said, “It’s inter department issue, there is lack of coordination between the different departments who have to implement the ruling, but we are serious about eradicating the menace. We have charged challans against many proprietors who had engaged child labors, but it is a social problem. Law enforcement is difficult unless people won’t cooperate.

MINES PLANTED IN ORCHARDS, GRAVEYARD OF KUPWARA VILLAGE

‘POLICE SQUAD NOT ALLOWED TO REMOVE’

Gushi (Handwara), Feb 3: Even as PDP-led coalition claims that it is clearing roadblocks on Srinagar-Muzaffarabad Road, the residents of this village fear to venture in their orchards lest some anti-personal mine-planted by troops-blows them apart. Some mines have been fitted in a graveyard too, which the villagers consider disrespectful to the dead. 

No human casualties have occurred because ever since villagers spotted the mines two years ago, they haven’t ventured into the mined land and always caution people from other areas not to venture as such. However, many cattle’s have been lost to the mine explosions, the villagers said. 

The villagers said that for fear of reprisal they remained silent over the issue even though they came to know about the mines in early 2003, planted in the Orchards and the graveyards located 200 yards away from the army post. 

A team of Red Cross who visited the village reported the matter to Senior Superintendent of Police, Kupwara. The SSP sent a seven-member bomb disposal squad for removing the mines but the army didn’t allow the de-mining operation. “ I have to see who has planted the mines,” the army officer of the nearby post had reportedly told the police squad. 

Orchardists have suffered losses because for fear of stepping over mines, they have stopped to look after the trees. “We couldn’t approach civilian authorities because we feared army,” a villager told on anonymity. 

Superintendent of Police, Handwara, Nitish Kumar told a local daily, “I have taken up the matter with top army officers. People need not worry, the matter would be resolved soon”.

VDC MEMBER KILLS WIFE, CHILD; COMMITS SUICIDE

February 6: A Village Defense Committee (VDC) member shot dead his wife and ten-month-old baby and later committed suicide by shooting himself with his 303 rifle in the heart of Billawar town of district Kathua, Jammu.

 
He was mentally upset from last few months, reports said.
Reports said that a VDC member who is also a shopkeeper shot dead his wife and ten-month-old son at 0315 hours while they were asleep. Later he kept the gun under his chin and shot himself.
 
Mistaking it for a fidayeen attack, it created panic as people ran helter skelter for safety.

Police also rushed to the house and found three members of the family dead.
The deceased were identified as Sanjeev Gupta alias Billu, 30 son of Chuni Lal, (VDC member), his wife Monika Gupta, 22 and 10-month-old son, resident of ward number 6, Billawar.
Police recovered 303 rifle, which was issued to Sanjeev Gupta in capacity of being a VDC member.  

 
However, the government did not pay him, as the VDC had been constituted in the town for security purpose.

 
Billu along with his two other brothers was working in their shops located in the market near Shiv Temple.

 
Family members of the victim disclosed that he had dinner with them last night and retired to bed. They, however, said that he was mentally upset from last few months.

Police has registered a case in this connection. The cause behind the provocation was, however, not yet ascertained.

NEWS IN BRIEF

* PUNISH THE KILLER OFFICER: BEERWAH RESIDENTS

Srinagar, Feb 2: The residents of Kawoosa Beerwah have threatened to launch massive agitation if the government failed to take action against the in charge police task force in the area allegedly involved in the custodial killing of Abdul Gani Dar (50) s/o Muhammad Ramzan.

Quoting locals, sources said “police official Chowdhary detained Abdul Gani from Jammu on January 17 and subjected him to severe torture resulting in his killing”. The police official, the locals said, tried to kill him in a stage-managed encounter day before Eid-ul-Azha. Despite the commissioner Budgam, Khawaja Bashir Ahmed, to the additional deputy commissioner Budgam asking him to conduct an inquiry into the incident the police have failed to do anything substantial.

The locals further said that other personnel were also involved in the incident. The people expressed anguish over the government attitude towards the incident saying the authorities to take appropriate action against the accused.  

* BSF BEAT JKP SI

Srinagar, Feb 4: A Border Security Force (BSF) officer reportedly beat up a police sub-inspector and his driver in main market Pulwama after a BSF vehicle hit a police gypsy.  The incident was witnessed by hundreds of people. 

On the afternoon of 4th February, a BSF vehicle of 16 battalion Banpora camp hit police gypsy JK02T-5489. The officer identified as JAD Anil Kumar accompanied by other BSF troopers dragged out the driver of police gypsy Ali Muhammad and sub- inspector Ghulam Ahmed Bhat and beat them up severely. After beating them, the BSF officer took the police vehicle and left the scene.

Soon after police swung into action and seized the BSF vehicle, which had hit the police gypsy. Police also forced the BSF to release the gypsy taken away by the BSF.  Police has registered an FIR 33/2005 and a case under section 279,332,427 RPC against the BSF 16 battalion officer Anil Kumar. 

* PDP COUNCILOR SHOT DEAD

Srinagar, Feb 8: Suspected militants on Feb 8 abducted and subsequently shot dead a People Democratic Party (PDP) councilor elect, who was elected unopposed in recently conducted Beerwah Municipal Council Election in Achama, Budgam.

Police said 55-year-old Ghulam Mohi-ud-din Mir alias Manager a resident of Beerwah was abducted from his Maruti car, on Feb 8 morning, nearly 10 kms away from his residence and afterwards shot dead.

The whole incident took place when Mir was on his way to Srinagar for a party meeting. 

* NC COUNCILOR SHOT DEAD

Srinagar, Feb 9: Suspected militants on Feb 9 evening shot and injured a National Conference (NC) councilor elect, who was elected in a recently held civic polls in Srinagar. 

                 According to reports, the gunmen fired several shots on Muhammad Maqbool Shah, 72, alias Taeth Sahib of Ikhrajpora Raj Bagh outside his house injuring him critically. He later succumbed at Soura Medical Institute. The councilor was a retired Sub-Inspector and potential candidate for Mayor ship of Srinagar city.
* ATTACK ON COUNCILORS

Srinagar, Feb 10:  Suspected militants on Feb 9 lobbed a grenade at the house of Abdul Rashid Kuchay at Nowpora Bandipora in north Kashmir’s Baramulla district.

The blast damaged the windowpanes, however no one was injured. Abdul Rashid, according to the communiqué, recently won the civic polls on PDF mandate.

In another incident militants barged into the residence of recently elected councilor Muhammad Sultan Sofi at Ahangar Mohalla Bijbehara and fired some rounds inside the house. The house owner who won the civic election on Peoples Democratic Party (PDP) ticket was not present in the house at the time of the incident.

* INFORMER SHOT DEAD

Baramulla, Feb 19: Suspected militants shot dead a police informer Noor Muhammad Bajad s/o M Shafi Bajad of Langmarg, Chithibanday, Bandipora in his house on 19 Feb 2005.

* CIVILIAN THRASHED

Feb 22, Srinagar: Hundreds of people on Feb 22 held huge demonstrations at Zaina Kadal in Srinagar against the severe thrashing of a person by troopers of Border Security Force (BSF)

        According to witnesses, the protestors blocked the main road suspending vehicular traffic for hours and forced closure of business establishments in the area. The protests, according to the locals was held against the thrashing of Ahanger of Syed Hamidpora Nawab Bazaar by the troopers of 37 Bn BSF stationed at Gadda Kochi, Zaina Kadal.

        The witnesses said that the troopers for regular frisking stopped Abdul Rehman. Soon the conversation between the troopers and Abdul Rehman turned into an altercation after which the troopers ruthlessly beat him up with rifle butts and manhandled him. Abdul Rehman, according to witness suffered grievous injuries in the incident and collapsed on the road. The injured was later admitted in the SMHS hospital in a critical condition.

After witnessing the horrific incident, the residents of the area demonstrated against the use of power by troopers. The agitated protestors raised slogans against the BSF and also voiced pro-freedom slogans. The police later dispersed the protestors by force. 

         Meanwhile, the Awami Action Committee (AAC) and Democratic Freedom Party (DFP) strongly condemned the act and demanded that government should direct the troops to stop such acts.

* 14 INJURED IN GRENADE EXPLOSION 

February 24: Twelve civilians and two Border Security Force (BSF) troopers were injured some critically in a grenade explosion in Shah Faisal Colony at Sopore in North Kashmir. 

Reports said at around 1.15 PM, unidentified persons hurled a hand grenade towards the personnel of 112 battalion of BSF stationed at Shah Faisal colony. The grenade failed to hit the target and exploded on the road wounding two BSF men, Pyare Lal and Sanjeev Kumar, and 12 civilians. 

The injured civilians admitted in critical condition in different hospitals were identified as Abdul Rashid Malik of Model Town, Hafiz Jehangir of Tujar, Ghulam Muhammad Shah, Bashir Ahmad Shah, Jameela d/o Ghulam Muhammad Shah of Adipora, Hilal Magray of Asha Par. 

Besides, Gulzar Ahmad of Sangrampora, Posha w/o Farooq Ahmad of Aloosa Bandipora, Bashir Ahmad Ganai of Hathishah, Maqsood Ahmad of Pattan and Muhammad Faheem of Tujar, Sopore received splinter injuries. 

* JK SECURITY BUDGET SCALES A NEW HIGH

Feb 24:  With no let-up in militancy, J-K government’s security related expenditure (SRE) is spiraling. A team of officials is all set to visit the Union Home Ministry in New Delhi to discuss the Rs 174 crore that the state plans to spend money on security in the coming year.

Officials said that the security related expenditure of the state is Rs 50 crore more than last years budgeted estimate, which was pegged at around Rs 120 core.

* PM’S PROMISE WILL BE REALIZED SOON

Feb 24: The government is keen on fulfilling its promise of rehabilitating Kashmiri Pundits who migrated during turmoil. Come March and the State government will start the construction work on the two room tenements for Kashmiri migrants. The work which will span a period of three years, will be initiated at Muthi camp Phase- II with initial construction of 506 tenements and eventually would replace the entire 4,742 tenements in migrant camps.

KILLINGS IN FEBRUARY

	DATE
	SOLDIERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	Feb 01
	-
	-
	4
	-

	Feb 02
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb 03
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Feb 04
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Feb 05
	-
	1
	1
	1 political activist

	Feb 06
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Feb 07
	-
	3
	1
	-

	Feb 08
	-
	2
	1
	1 PDP activist

	Feb 09
	-
	2
	1
	1 councilor

	Feb 10
	-
	1
	2
	-

	Feb 11
	-
	5
	2
	-

	Feb 12
	-
	4
	-
	-

	Feb 13
	-
	3
	-
	-

	Feb 14
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb 15
	1
	1
	-
	-

	Feb 16
	-
	2
	1
	1 political activist

	Feb 17
	-
	3
	3
	-

	Feb 18
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Feb 19
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb 20
	-
	-
	-
	1 SF informer

	Feb 21
	-
	2
	1
	-

	Feb 22
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Feb 23
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Feb 24
	3
	8
	1
	-

	Feb 25
	-
	4
	-
	-

	Feb 26
	-
	7
	-
	-

	Feb 27
	-
	1
	1
	-

	Feb 28
	-
	1
	1
	-

	Total
	4
	55
	21
	5


WOMEN/CHILDREN KILLED

	Feb 1
	Unidentified gunmen killed four members of a family including three children at Nathale Bhagwa Doda. According to reports assailants barged into the residence of Abdul Aziz and hurled grenade killing four persons identified as Naseema Begum (55) w/o Abdul Aziz, Rubina Akhter (10) and Rehana Akhter (5) daughters of Abdul Aziz and Khursheed Ahmed (15) s/o Abdul Aziz.  The house owner and his 4-year-old daughter Safia Bano who were injured in the incident have been shifted to hospital.



	Feb 6
	One women and 10m month old baby was killed by their father a VDC member



	Feb 9
	A beheaded body of a 4-year-old kid was recovered at Pamposh colony Palpora area. According to police the body of the child was wrapped in polythene. The identity of the child is to be ascertained. The residents of the area took to streets and demonstrated against the killing demanding immediate action from the police.



	Feb 17
	Militant’s shot at and injured Mubeena at Drangbal Pampore. She was immediately moved to the hospital where her condition was stated to be critical.



	Feb 18
	Unknown armed men killed 18-year-old Shafeeqa after forcing the entry inside her house at Ahsan Batapora Kulgam in Anantnag. She died on the spot and the assailants escaped immediately.



	Feb 24
	A woman was killed in violence related incident



	Feb 28
	Police recovered the body of Maroof Ahmad of Sangla Surankote from the same area on Sunday. According to a police communiqué, Maroof a class 10th student was abducted by unidentified gunman from his house on February 21. Police has registered a case. 




	Date
	Alleged C.K. / EJE
	Women
	Children
	Alleged Disappearances

	Feb 1
	-
	1
	3
	-

	Feb 6
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Feb 18
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Feb 26
	2 (EJE)
	-
	-
	

	Feb28
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Total 
	2
	3
	4
	0


	Name of resurfaces
	Parentage
	Address
	Disappeared on
	Disappeared on

	Mohammad Latief Mirchal-26
	
	Hardushiva- Sopore, Baramulla
	June 16 - 2004
	Army camped at Watlab 

Details: (He was released after 1 ½ month of his disappearance. As per Latief’s statements that he was taken outside Kashmir by the troops for 8 days during his detention period of 1 ½ month.

	Mohammad Ashraf Zargar (37) (ex-militant)
	Abdul Majeed Zargar
	Zargar Mohalla, Kreeri- Baramulla
	22 May 2003
	Armed men in civvies –

Details: - His decomposed dead body was recovered from Tappar Chak, Baramulla by the locals. His family identified him by his shoes and finger-ring. He was a released militant and was running a shop at the time of his kidnapping.

	Tariq Ahmad Dar

Released after 6 days by Delhi police
	Ghulam Mohammad Dar 
	Kralteng, Sopore, Baramulla

Currently residing at Amarghar, Sopore, Baramulla
	1st Aug 2003
	Left Sadhananad Nagar his Delhi residence 

(Not Known) 

Details: He was arrested by Delhi police and released after 6 days. During his detention period he was interrogated and mild tortured was inflicted on him. Despite, arrest he is still studying in Delhi.

	Aijaz Ahmad Dar
	Ghulam Rasool
	Nowpora of Sopore-Baramulla
	1 May 2003
	Details: He was picked up by STF from his home and accused of having hand in the killing of Abdul Majeed Dar ex-operational commander of HM. He was a released militant of JKLF. Now he is running a tailor shop in Noorbagh Sopore few km away from his residence.

	Ghulam Hassan Mir
	Mushtaq Ahmad
	Alzum Gulgam Kupawara
	
	Reappeared 5 months after EID

	Ghulam Hassan Mir 


	
	Kupwara Kralpora
	
	Reappeared 12 years after EID. (he states that he was working with Allah Wala Sectt which is not believed and his statement is considered to be under army pressure

	Bashir Wani
	Muhammad Jamal Wani
	Bagatpora
	
	Reappeared 18 months after his EID on 15 march 2003 by 22 RR who later handed him over to 44RR in Baramulla


CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS FEB 2005

	Feb 1
	 Killed 4 family members 3 children and 1 women 

	Feb 2
	5 persons were injured in different incidents related violence in the valley.

	Feb 3
	2 unidentified militants killed in different incidents of violence.

	Feb 4
	1 militant of HM was killed in different incidents of violence in the valley.

	Feb 5
	1 HM militant, 1 political activist and 1 civilian killed in different incidents of violence.

	Feb 6
	2 militants were killed in violence related incidents while village defense committee member commits suicide after killing his wife and his 10-month-old baby at Kathau district.

	Feb 7
	 2 LeT militants, 1 unidentified militant and a civilian killed in violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 8
	1PDP activist, 1 JEM, 1 LeT militant and I minor killed in violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 9
	1 NC councilor, and 2 militants killed in violence related incidents in the valley. Meanwhile troops arrested 6 youths in valley.

	Feb 10
	1 militant and 2 civilian killed in violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 11
	5 militants including 1 LeT militant and 2 civilians killed in violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 12
	3 LeT militants, 1 unidentified militant killed in violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 13
	 3 LeT militants were killed and meanwhile 33 persons were injured in violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb14
	Incident free

	Feb 15
	 I unidentified militant and I solider violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 16
	2 militants, a father-in-law of political activist and 1CPI(M) activist killed in violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 17
	3 militants and 3 civilians killed in violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 18
	18 years old girl killed in violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 19
	Paper not published

	Feb 20
	1 police informer killed in violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 21
	2 HM militants, 1 civilian killed in violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 22
	Incident free

	Feb 23
	1 civilian was brutally killed in the violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 24
	8 militants including 2 Al-Badar militants, 1 HM militant, 2 CRPF, 1 police cop and a woman were killed in the violence related incidents in the valley. 

	Feb 25
	4 LeT militants were killed in the violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 26
	7 militants killed including 2 LeT militants were killed in violence related incidents in the valley.

	Feb 27
	1 militant and 1 civilian were killed in the different violence related incident in the valley.

	Feb 28
	Student of class 10th   and 1 HM militant was killed in the violence related incidents in the valley.




 “Where is the pistol by which they fired upon BSF? How did they managed to escape from the scene, with a pistol”, Noor’s mother questioned.








        


People in the area were furious and threaten to lodge massive protest in front of the Chief Minister’s official residence if police failed to ascertain his whereabouts. 





The window of his load carrier was open, lights were on and his muffler was lying on the front seat. The first surrounding evidences indicate that the captors dragged him before taking him away.














Thereafter, nothing was known of Noor Muhammad. After search, his disappearance appeared mysterious as the window of his load carrier was open, lights were on and his muffler was lying on the front seat”.








Detained illegally in a solitary cell, Mushtaq was never produced before any executive or judicial magistrate for remand. Nor he was interrogated. 


During detention Mushtaq met 15 illegally detained persons from different areas.
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